
 

                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 20, 2010    Page 1  of  2 
 

 
P.O. BOX 675 ▪ 61750 CHOLLITA ROAD ▪ JOSHUA TREE ▪ CALIFORNIA 92252 

TELEPHONE (760) 366-8438    FAX (760) 366-9528    E-MAIL  jbwd@jbwd.com 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 20, 2010  7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Pg   1-3 
Pg   4-32 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Minutes October 6, 2010 Regular Board Meeting 
B. Financial Report for September 2010 
 

Pg   33-35 7. REPORT ON PUBLIC OUTREACH ACTIVITIES 
 

 
 

8. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 

 9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 10. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 11. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

   
 

The Board of Directors reserves the right to take action on items reserved for discussion only.  
INFORMATION 



 

                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 20, 2010    Page 2  of  2 
 

During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 
information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and appreciates 
your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone 
Joshua Basin Water District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a 
disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 
92252 during normal business hours. 



 

                         1                                                 Regular Meeting of October 6, 2010 

 
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 6, 2010 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER    7:00 PM 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  Led by Gary Given 
 
3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: By roll-call: 
       Bill Long  Present 
       Mickey Luckman Present 
       Mike Reynolds           Present 
       Steven Whitman Present 
       Gary Wilson  Present 
 
 STAFF PRESENT:   Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
      Susan Greer, Assistant GM/Controller 
      Terry Spurrier, HR/Administrative Services Supervisor 
      Randy Little, Water Production Supervisor 
      Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
 
 GUESTS: 9   
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Long/Whitman 5/0 to approve the agenda for the Regular Meeting of October 6, 2010. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Long/Whitman 4/1 to approve the Minutes of the Regular meeting of September 15, 2010. 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Whitman Aye  
   Wilson  No 
 
7. MOJAVE WATER AGENCY PRESENTATION 
President Luckman introduced Jim Ventura, Mojave Water Agency (MWA) Director.  He spoke of 

challenges and opportunities facing MWA in its 50th year of existence.  He acknowledged 
JBWD’s efforts in water conservation which are being noted as a model throughout the region.  
He discussed the budget, revenues, and taxes noting that MWA has been very successful in 
receiving grants and has not raised taxes in the past several years.  He commended JBWD for 
forming partnerships with High Desert Medical Center, Copper Mountain College, MWA and 
AWAC. 

Director Ventura introduced Kirby Brill, General Manager, who thanked the Board for establishing an 
environment of partnership with MWA in addressing issues such as the Urban Water Management 
Plan, JBWD’s Ground Water Recharge project, federal grant funding opportunities, water 
conservation, and similar efforts. 

Page 1 of 35



 

                         2                                                 Regular Meeting of October 6, 2010 

In reference to the presentation by Kirby Brill, Gary Lovelace, former Board Member, spoke in support of 
the ground water recharge project and in support of the District’s trip to Washington DC to secure 
federal funds.  

The Board thanked Mr. Ventura and Mr. Brill for their presentations 
 
8. NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR JOSHUA TREE WATER WISE DEMONSTRATION 

GARDEN 
The staff report was presented and the following action was taken: 
MSC Long/Reynolds 4/1 to approve staff recommendation to authorize final payment and the Notice of 

Completion for the demonstration garden to be recorded subject to the lien period. 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Whitman Aye  
   Wilson  No 
 
9. NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR WELL #16 
The staff report was presented and the following action was taken: 
MSC Reynolds/Whitman 5/0 to approve staff recommendation to authorize final payment and the Notice 

of Completion to be recorded for Well #16 subject to a retention of $12,304.12 pending the lien 
period. 

 

10. CONSIDERATION OF PURCHASE OF STAFF REPLACEMENT COMPUTERS 
GIS Coordinator Keith Faul presented the staff report noting that the cost of the computer hardware was 

less than the $20,000 budgeted, but that the cost of the necessary software brought the total cost of 
the project to $22,162.83. 

Gary Lovelace spoke in favor of purchasing the computers.  Al Marquez spoke in opposition.  Barbara 
Delph spoke in support of updating the computers citing several reasons that the purchase is cost 
effective and reasonable. 

MSC Long/Whitman 4/1 to approve staff recommendation to authorize staff to purchase 18 replacement 
computers and software for staff at a total cost of $22,162.83 

   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Whitman Aye  
   Wilson  No 
 

11. REPORT ON DISTRICT EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 
GIS Coordinator Keith Faul gave a presentation on emergency management training he attended at 

California Specialized Training Institute. 
 
12. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 
The Board and staff reviewed the project list; Well #16 is complete and the SCADA computer 

replacement with backup is complete. 
 
13. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Joshua Tree resident Gary Lovelace urged the Board to proceed with projects necessary to be able to 

purchase and recharge water to avoid contaminating and having to treat water in the future. Al 
Marquez of Joshua Tree spoke in opposition to recharge stating that there is sufficient water 
supply without it. 

Kathleen Radnich reported that JBWD will be present at the Earthquake Preparedness show sponsored by 
Home Depot on Saturday and Sunday October 9th and 10th. 

 

Page 2 of 35



 

                         3                                                 Regular Meeting of October 6, 2010 

14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
General Manager Joe Guzzetta advised the Board that the motor soft start for Well #10 failed on Monday 

and needs to be replaced at a cost of approximately $8,600 noting that the well, which is the 
primary producer for the C Zone, could not be used until the equipment is replaced.  He asked that 
the Board recognize this as an urgency item and take action to authorize the replacement. 

MSC Long/Reynolds 5/0 to make the findings that this matter is urgent and could not have been known at 
the time the agenda was prepared. 

MSC Long/Whitman 5/0 to approve the expenditure of $8,600 for installation of a motor soft start at Well 
#10. 

 
15. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
None. 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 8:32 PM 
MSC  Long/Whitman 5/0 to adjourn the October 6, 2010 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
Respectfully submitted; 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Wednesday October 20, 2010 at 7:00 

pm. 

Page 3 of 35



Page 4 of 35



Page 5 of 35



Page 6 of 35



Page 7 of 35



Page 8 of 35



Page 9 of 35



Page 10 of 35



Page 11 of 35



Page 12 of 35



Page 13 of 35



Page 14 of 35



Page 15 of 35



Page 16 of 35



Page 17 of 35



Page 18 of 35



Page 19 of 35



Page 20 of 35



Page 21 of 35



Page 22 of 35



Page 23 of 35



Page 24 of 35



Page 25 of 35



Page 26 of 35



Page 27 of 35



Page 28 of 35



Page 29 of 35



Page 30 of 35



Page 31 of 35



Page 32 of 35



Updated    10/14/2010                  Page 1 

Project Priority List 
 
PROJECTS NEARING COMPLETION 
Personnel Policy Manual (Joe Guzzetta) 
This will be considered during labor negotiations this year. 
 
PROJECTS UNDERWAY 
Update Urban Water Management Plan (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 
Contract was awarded to Kennedy Jenks at the August 4th 2010 Board meeting. State law  requires this 
update to be completed by July 1, 2011. 
Property Acquisition for Future Water Facilities (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 
The Master Plan identifies 27 to 37 million gallons of additional reservoir storage that will be needed 
to operate the District in the future.  Staff proposes to begin acquiring the land before the most ideal 
parcels are developed, especially for reservoirs which are constrained by altitude, proximity to the 
existing system, and other considerations. Potential sites are under evaluation. 
Recharge Basin & Pipeline Project  (Joe Guzzetta) 
Property has been purchased.  Monitoring well has been installed. Final design contract was awarded 
to Krieger & Stewart Engineers at August 4th Board meeting. Construction is contingent on Proposition 
84 and other funding. 
Final Phase of 4” Pipe Replacement  (Joe Guzzetta, Joe Bocanegra, Keith Faul) 
Priorities have been established. 15,000’ of pipeline has been designed with 60,000’ yet to be 
designed.  Completion design and construction of this project is pending a financial strategy to be 
considered by the Board. 
Record Archival System  (Susan Greer – Year 1) 
Staff had second presentation. This will eventually enable the District to maintain more electronic files 
for easier access and less physical storage. 
 
PROJECTS COMPLETED 
Well #16   (Randy Little)   
The well has been completed and is permitted by Department of Health Services. 
Hot Master + Backup Computer – SCADA (Randy Little – Year 1) 
Complete. This computer provides backup to the Telemetry System.   
 
PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 1 
Develop/Update Board Policies and Procedures (Susan Greer) 
Update 3030 Plan (Joe Guzzetta) 
Staff intends to solicit proposals for this project. 
Election to Charge Private Wells for Replacement Water 
Attorney is reviewing election options. 
Fire Cabinet for Maps (Keith Faul – Year 1) 
Custom Software Programming  (Susan Greer/Keith Faul – Year 1) 
Adds lacking features to the District’s main software program, such as reports or functions, and 
specific items not yet identified. 
Conduct Fee Study/Update Rate Study (Susan Greer – Year 1)  
Miscellaneous fees are being developed based upon resources used; staff, vehicle, equipment, etc. A rate study 
update will determine what rate changes are needed in the next several years to maintain services.  
 
 

Page 33 of 35



Updated    10/14/2010                  Page 2 

Space Needs Assessment for Office Building Addition (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 
A needs assessment will determine how much space the District needs for an Emergency Operations 
Center in order to apply for grant construction funds. This item was discussed at the August 4, 2010 
Board meeting, and deferred. 
LAFCO Mandatory Municipal Services Review (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 
State law requires LAFCO to conduct a review of each agency’s boundaries and services (at agency 
cost) to determine the appropriateness and to recommend any changes. LAFCO must take the initiative 
to conduct this. 
GIS Server for Field Login (Keith Faul – Year 1) 
Field crew will receive laptop computers to be used in the field for more accuracy and efficiency.  This 
server is needed in order to connect to the GIS system. 
Field Laptop Computers (Keith Faul – Year 1) 
Storage Bays for Rock, Sand, Asphalt (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 
This will allow for more orderly storage of rock, sand, and asphalt which are used regularly in normal 
district operations. 
Hauling Station Coin/Card Reader – Under Study (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 
Staff is considering a system to enable selling of water at the hauling station.  
Pressure Reducing Station Replace/Refurbishment (Randy Little – Years 1-2) 
Assess and overhaul or replace PRV/PSV/Altitude valve over a three year period.  Twelve in use, one 
completed.   
 
YEAR 2 
Carpet for Office (Terry Spurrier – Year 2) 
D31 New Booster Pumps and Housing (Randy Little – Year 2) 
The pumps at this booster station operate at a low efficiency rate such that it is timely to replace them. 
Chlorine Analyzers With Telemetry Programming (Randy Little – Year 2) 
Install analyzers to monitor chlorine residual at up to four remote sites. 
Flow Meter Refurbishment (Randy Little – Year 2) 
Four remaining flow meters (2 this year) with digital displays and telemetry plus DTS programming. 
Asphalt Installation Equipment – Under Study (Jim Corbin – Year 2) 
Pipe Holder (Jim Corbin – Year 2) 
The District stores small amounts of plastic pipe for repairs.  There is nowhere out of the sun to do so.  
Over time the pipe can deteriorate when exposed to the sun.  This will provide shade. 
Altitude Valves at C2B, SCADA Electric Controls C1 and C3 Tanks (Randy Little – Year 2) 
These valves will prevent the overflowing of the C Zone tanks. 
Relocate C2 Tank & J Booster (Randy Little – Years 2-3) 
This project has been designed and would relocate a 500,000 gallon tank from the C Zone where it is 
no longer needed to the H Zone where it is severely needed.  The project was deferred pending 
funding. 
System Reliability Upgrade for Hospital and County Complex; C, B and D3 zones (Jim Corbin – 
Years 2-3) 
This entire area has one single water supply feed.  It does not have a redundant water supply for 
emergency situations.  Staff has proposed a secondary “emergency” source. 
 
PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 3 
Security (Motion Sensors) at Shop and Well 10 (Randy Little – Year 3) 
This would provide security to an expanded area at the shop.   
 
 

Page 34 of 35



Updated    10/14/2010                  Page 3 

Emergency Preparedness Projects:  (Postponed to determine funding potential) 
Well 10 and 14 Soft Start Bypass – Generator Controls  (Randy Little – Year 1)  
The new 600 KW generators need this equipment in order to operate properly at the two largest 
producing wells. 
Earthquake Shutoff Valves for Three Tanks (Randy Little – Year 1) 
Currently, if a pipe from a reservoir is broken the entire reservoir can be drained unless a valve is 
manually located and shut off. This will provide automatic shutoff in case of earthquake to the two 
major C tanks and the B tank serving the hospital. 
Transfer Switches at Remaining Booster Sites (Randy Little – Year 1) 
The switches are needed in order to be able to use the emergency generators at the pump stations. 
Large Meter Bypasses (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 
Currently, in order to test or remove a large meter, the service needs to be disconnected.  This is a 
serious problem for some large meters such as the hospital.  The bypass will allow the meter to be 
removed and replaced without discontinuing service. 
Emergency Supplies (Rick Cook – Years 1-2) 
These include food, water, cots, etc. for serious emergencies for employees. 
 

Page 35 of 35




